
LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
88 SOUTH PARK AVE.

LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057
507-357-8538

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT A PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD.

DATE: JULY 14, 2016

TIME:  7:00 PM 

PLACE: LE SUEUR COUNTY ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES BUILDING, 515 SOUTH MAPLE 
AVE, LE CENTER MN

PURPOSE: To hear testimony from interested parties and consider Rezoning and Conditional 
Use Permit Applications and other questions pertaining to and as provided by the Zoning 
Ordinance of Le Sueur County as described below.  Information regarding the applications is 
available for review at the Environmental Services Building during normal business hours.

ITEM #1 Planning Commission Notice of Public Hearing 

ITEM #2 Planning Commission Agenda 

ITEM #3 Novel Energy Solutions/Vetter Sec 9 

ITEM #4 Novel Energy Solutions/Vetter Sec 16 

ITEM #5 Draft PZ Minutes 

APPLICANT OR REPRESENTATIVE MUST BE PRESENT IN ORDER FOR THE APPLICATION TO BE HEARD.

Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 1 / 105



KATHY BROCKWAY, LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING & ZONING ADMINISTRATOR
MICHELLE R. METTLER, ASSISTANT PLANNING & ZONING ADMINISTRATOR 

Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 2 / 105



Le Sueur County, MN
Thursday, July 14, 2016

Regular session

Item 1

Planning Commission Notice of Public Hearing

Staff Contact: Kathy Brockway or Michelle Mettler

Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 3 / 105



LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
88 SOUTH PARK AVE.

LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057
507-357-8538

www.co.le-sueur.mn.us

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT A PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD.

DATE: JULY 14, 2016

TIME: 7:00 P.M.

PLACE: Le Sueur County Environmental Services, 515 South Maple Ave, Le Center, MN.

PURPOSE: To hear testimony from interested parties and consider Rezoning, Amendments and 
Conditional Use Permit Applications, as provided by the Zoning Ordinance of Le Sueur 
County, as described below.  

Applications are available for review at the Environmental Services Building during normal 
business hours and on the website on or after JULY 1, 2016.

ITEM #1: NOVEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS, ROCHESTER, MN (APPLICANT); BRIAN, 
KEVIN & TIMOTHY VETTER, KASOTA, MN (OWNER):  Request that the County grant a Conditional 
Use Permit to allow the applicant to construct a 1MW solar garden in an Agricultural “A” District.  Property is 
located in the SE1/4 SW1/4, Section 9, Kasota Township.  

ITEM #2: NOVEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS, ROCHESTER, MN (APPLICANT); VETTER 
ENTERPRISES, LLC, ST. PETER, MN (OWNER):  Request that the County grant a Conditional Use 
Permit to allow the applicant to construct a 3MW solar garden in an Agricultural “A” District.  Property is 
located in the SW1/4, Section 16, Kasota Township.  

APPLICANT OR REPRESENTATIVE MUST BE PRESENT IN ORDER FOR THE APPLICATION TO BE HEARD.

KATHY BROCKWAY, LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING & ZONING ADMINISTRATOR
MICHELLE R. METTLER, ASSISTANT PLANNING & ZONING ADMINISTRATOR 

Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 4 / 105

http://www.co.le-sueur.mn.us


Le Sueur County, MN
Thursday, July 14, 2016

Regular session

Item 1

Planning Commission Agenda

Staff Contact: Kathy Brockway or Michelle Mettler

Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 5 / 105



LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
MEETING AGENDA

ORGANIZATION:  LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING/ZONING COMMISSION

MEETING DATE: July 14, 2016   

MEETING PLACE: Le Sueur County Environmental Service 

Beginning Time: 7:00 P.M.    Ending Time: Approx. 8:30 P. M.

If you CANNOT be at the meeting, contact MINDY at 357-8538

AGENDA:              

Meeting Called
to Order .

ITEM #1: NOVEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS, ROCHESTER, MN (APPLICANT); BRIAN, KEVIN & 
TIMOTHY VETTER, KASOTA, MN (OWNER):  Request that the County grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow the 
applicant to construct a 1MW solar garden in an Agricultural “A” District.  Property is located in the SE1/4 SW1/4, Section 9, 
Kasota Township.  

ITEM #2: NOVEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS, ROCHESTER, MN (APPLICANT); VETTER 
ENTERPRISES, LLC, ST. PETER, MN (OWNER):  Request that the County grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow 
the applicant to construct a 3MW solar garden in an Agricultural “A” District.  Property is located in the SW1/4, Section 16, 
Kasota Township.  

DISCUSSION;

MINUTES-WARRANTS           

ADJOURN 8:30 P.M.

Planning & Zoning Commission Public Hearing Procedure:  The Chairman calls the meeting to order, then calls 
the item to be heard and asks the Applicant or representative present to come to the podium to answer any questions 
or present any comments.  The Chairman opens the meeting to the public.  Each speaker comes to the podium and 
states their name for the record prior to making a statement or posing a question.  All questions or comments are to 
be directed to the board, NOT THE APPLICANT.  After the public comments the Planning Commission publicly 
discusses the information and reviews the findings before making a motion.  All meetings are recorded.

Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 6 / 105



Le Sueur County, MN
Thursday, July 14, 2016

Regular session

Item 1

Novel Energy Solutions/Vetter Sec 9

Staff Contact: Kathy Brockway or Michelle Mettler

Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 7 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 8 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 9 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 10 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 11 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 12 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 13 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 14 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 15 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 16 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 17 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 18 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 19 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 20 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 21 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 22 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 23 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 24 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 25 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 26 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 27 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 28 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 29 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 30 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 31 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 32 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 33 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 34 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 35 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 36 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 37 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 38 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 39 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 40 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 41 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 42 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 43 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 44 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 45 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 46 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 47 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 48 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 49 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 50 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 51 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 52 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 53 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 54 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 55 / 105



Le Sueur County, MN
Thursday, July 14, 2016

Regular session

Item 2

Novel Energy Solutions/Vetter Sec 16

Staff Contact: Kathy Brockway or Michelle Mettler

Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 56 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 57 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 58 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 59 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 60 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 61 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 62 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 63 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 64 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 65 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 66 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 67 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 68 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 69 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 70 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 71 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 72 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 73 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 74 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 75 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 76 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 77 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 78 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 79 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 80 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 81 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 82 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 83 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 84 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 85 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 86 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 87 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 88 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 89 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 90 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 91 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 92 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 93 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 94 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 95 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 96 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 97 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 98 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 99 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 100 / 105



Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 101 / 105



Le Sueur County, MN
Thursday, July 14, 2016

Regular session

Item 1

Draft PZ Minutes

Staff Contact: Kathy Brockway or Michelle Mettler

Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 102 / 105



LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
88 SOUTH PARK AVE.

LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057
June 09, 2016

MEMBERS PRESENT: Jeanne Doheny, Don Rynda, Chuck Retka, Shirley Katzenmeyer, Steve 
Olson, Al Gehrke, Betty Bruzek, Pam Tietz

MEMBERS ABSENT: Don Reak, Doug Krenik

OTHERS PRESENT: Kathy Brockway, Commissioner Connolly

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 PM by Chairperson, Jeanne Doheny.

ITEM #1: SOCORE RED MAPLE LLC, CHICAGO, IL, (APPLICANT); KATHLEEN 
REGENSCHEID REVOCABLE TRUST, (OWNER):  Request that the County grant a Conditional Use 
Permit to allow the applicant to construct a 3 MW solar garden in the Conservancy “C” and Agriculture 
“A” Districts and the Special Protection “SP” District, on an unnamed stream. Property is located in the 
NW 1/4 SE 1/4, Section 24, Kasota Township.  

Kathy Brockway presented power point presentation.  Andrew Dahlen, representing Socore Red Maple 
LLC, was present for application.  

TOWNSHIP: Notification through the application process.  DNR: No comments.   LETTERS: No 
comments.  

PUBLIC COMMENT:  No comments

Discussion was held regarding: history of Socore, installation of over 300 solar gardens within 17 states, 2 
roof top installations in Minnesota, in the process of working with other counties in Minnesota, flat site, no 
additional grading and filling, concern with taking the most productive farmland out of production to allow 
solar gardens, no standards in the ordinance, interconnection agreements, Xcel Energy standards to meet 
renewable energy guidelines, fire protection, fencing, screening, vegetation, maintenance of the site, 
decommissioning plan, time frame, security, lighting.

Findings by majority roll call vote: 

1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 
immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and 
impairs property values within the immediate vicinity.  Agreed.

2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in 
the area. Agreed.

3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities are being provided. 
Agreed.

4. Adequate measures will be taken to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading 
space to serve the proposed use.  Agreed.

5. Adequate measures will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, 
noise, and vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control 
lighted signs and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring 
properties will result. Agreed.

6. Is the Conditional Use Permit consistent with and supported by the statement of 
purposes, policies, goals, and objectives in the Ordinance?  Agreed (5-3)

Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 103 / 105



7. Is the Conditional Use Permit consistent with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan? 
Disagree as renewable energy is not addressed in the 2009 Comprehensive Land Use 
Plan.

Motion was made by Steve Olson to approve the application with the following conditions:
 A 7’ fence with 3 strands of barbed wire for a total fence height of 8’.
 Decommissioning Bond as set by the County Commissioners.

Seconded by Pam Tietz.  Motion approved.  Motion carried.

ITEM #2: LYRA COMMUNITY SOLAR GARDEN, EDINA, MN, (APPLICANT); LARRY 
& SOLVEIG THEIS, SHAKOPEE, MN, (OWNER):  Request that the County grant a Conditional Use 
Permit to allow the applicant to construct a 3 MW solar garden in a Special Protection  “SP” District, on a 
Natural Environment “NE” lake, Querum’s Slough.  Property is located in the SW 1/4 SW 1/4, Section 10, 
Waterville Township.

Kathy Brockway presented power point presentation.    Patrick Smith, representing Lyra Community Solar 
Garden, was present for application.  

TOWNSHIP:  Notification through the application process.  Al Gehrke, Township Representative stated 
that the township has no objections to the proposal.  DNR: No Comments      LETTERS:  Joshua 
Mankowski, LSC Resource Specialist. Letter read into record (see file).

Discussion was held regarding: agricultural land out of production, vegetation management, requested to 
deviate from the setbacks, re-worked plans, meets all required setbacks, fencing(woven type material with 
strands of barbed wire), height of fence, stray voltage, archeological study provided to the State, turn 
around, impervious surface, decommissioning plan, wetland delineation of the site, approved by the 
SWCD.

PUBLIC COMMENT:  Larry Theis, current landowner, site is marginal farm ground, better use of the land, 
native plantings better filter for the slough.

Findings by majority roll call vote: 

1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 
immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and impairs 
property values within the immediate vicinity. Agreed.

2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the area. Agreed.

3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities are being provided. Agreed.

4. Adequate measures will be taken to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to 
serve the proposed use. Agreed.

5. Adequate measures will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise, and 
vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other 
lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. Agreed.

6. Is the Conditional Use Permit consistent with and supported by the statement of purposes, 
policies, goals, and objectives in the Ordinance? Agreed (7-1). 

7. Is the Conditional Use Permit consistent with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan? Disagree 5-3 as 
renewable energy is not addressed in the 2009 Comprehensive Land Use Plan.

Motion was made by Al Gehrke to approve the application with the following condition:

Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 104 / 105



 Decommissioning Bond as set by the County Commissioners.
Seconded by Don Rynda.   Motion approved 7-1.   Descending vote:  Inconsistent with conditions.
Motion carried.

Discussion:   Workshop set up for June 23, 2016 at 4:00 PM to discuss Ordinance Revision to include 
standards for solar energy.

Motion was made by Pam Tietz to approve the minutes from the April 14, 2016 meeting. Seconded by 
Betty Bruzek.  Motion approved.  Motion carried.

Motion was made by May 19, 2016 to approve the minutes from the May 19, 2016 special meeting by 
Seconded by Shirley Katzenmeyer. Seconded by Steve Olson. Motion approved.  Motion carried.

Motion was made by Chuck Retka to approve the minutes from the May 26, 2016 special meeting. 
Seconded by Al Gehrke.  Motion approved.  Motion carried.

Motion to adjourn meeting by Shirley Katzenmeyer.  Seconded by Pam Tietz.  Motion approved.  Motion 
carried.

Meeting Adjourned.

Respectfully submitted,
Shirley Katzenmeyer by
Kathy Brockway

Tape of meeting is on file in the
Le Sueur County Environmental Services Office

Le Sueur County Regular session - 7/14/2016 Page 105 / 105


